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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REPORT

T the Board of Trustess of
Bristol Community College
Fall River, Massachusetts

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Bristol Community College (an
Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis) (the "College"), which comprise the statement
of net position as of June 30, 2018, the related statements of revenues and expenses, changes in
net position, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial
slatements.,

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
n accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of intemnal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit, We
did not audit the financial statements of Bristol Community Collepe Foundation, Tne, (the
"Foundation®) as discussed in Note 1. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
repott has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the Foundation, is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We conducted our audit in
accordance with auditing standards gencrally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance abowt whether the financial statements are free from
matenal misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’
Jjudgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fravd or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation end fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control.
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A-ﬁ:mrding]y, Wi BXPIEss [o such opinion, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant sccounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements,

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

O pinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective financial position of Bristo]l Community College as of June 30, 2018, and the
respective changes in net position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in pccordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of a Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, GASB Statement Number 75, Aceownting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefils Other Than Pensions, is effective for fiscal
vear 2018 and required the College to restate beginning net position at July 1, 2017 to recognize
its proportionate share of the net postemployment benefits other than pensions obligation
determined for the State Retirees® Benefit Trust.

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, we have previously issued an unmodified
opinion on the financial staternents dated October 12, 2018, Subsequent to the isspance of the
financial statements, it was discovered that the caleulation of postemployment benefits other than
pensions as of June 30, 2018 and July 1, 2017 was misstated.

Owr opinion is not modified with respect to these matters.

Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that
management’s discussion and analysis and the required supplementary information as listed in
the table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the besic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of
financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical comext. We have applied certain limited procedures to the reguired
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inguiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
respomses to owr inguiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.



Other Reporting Required by Govermment Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also ismed our report dated
October 12, 2018, on our considerstion of the College’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of s compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters, The purpose of that report is to deseribe the scope of our
testing of internal contro] over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing,
and not to provide an opinion on intemal control over financial repotting or on compliance. That
report 15 an intcgral part of an awdit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the College's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ulw aund. ﬂmr*F-C'

Certified Public Accountants
Braintree, Massachusetts

October 12, 2018 (except for Management's Discussion and Analysis, Note 2, Note 8, Note 10,
Note 16, and Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability, as to which the date is
Janary 30, 2019)



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)

Management®s Discussion and Analysis (Unandited)

June 30, 2018

Introduction

Bristol Community College (the “College™) is a two-year public comprehensive community
callege offering career and transfer programs of study that lead to associate deprees or certificates.
Bristol Community College is accredited by the New England Association of Schools and
Colleges. This sccreditation indicates that the institution has been carefully evaluated and been
found to meet standards agreed upon by qualified educators.

As management of Bristol Community College, we offer readers of our financial statements, this
narrative overview, and analysis of the financial activities of Bristol Community College for the
fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, This discussion has been prepared by management and
should be read in conjunction with the College's basic financial statements and footnotes,
Responsibility for the completeness and faimess of this information rests with the College.

Bristol Community College Foundation (the “Foundation™) is a legally scparate tax-exempt
component unit of Bristol Community College. The Foundation acts primarily as g fund-raising
organization to supplement the resources that are available to the College in support of its
programs. The Board of the Foundation is self-perpetuating and primarily consists of graduates
atwl friends of the College. Although the College does not contral the timing or the amount of
receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources received or held hy the Foundation are
restricted to the activities of the College by the donors. Because these resources held by the
Foundation can only be used by or are for the benefit of the College, the Foundation iz considered
a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the College’s financial statements,

Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis is required to focus on the College, not its component
unit.

The Financial Statements

The College's financial report includes four financial statements; the Starement of Net Position,
the Statement of Revenues and Expenses the Statement of Changes in Net Position, and the
Statement of Cash Flows. These financial statements are prepared in sccordance with the
Covernmental Accounting Stendards Board (GASB).

These financial statemnents focus on the financial condition, the results of operations, and the cash
flows of the College as a whole.



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued

June 30, 2018

The Financial Statements - Continued

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of Bristol Community College’s assets
and liabilities with the difference of the two reported as Ner Pasition. Changes in the College’s net
position are one indicator of the College's linancial health.

Orver time, increascs or decreases in net position are an indicator of the improvemeat or erosion of
the College’s financial health when considered with nonfinancial facts such as enrollment levels
and the condition of the facilities. The Statement of Net Position include all assets and ligbilities.
It is prepared under the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and assets are recognized
when the service is provided, and expenses and lisbilities are recognized when others provide the
service, regardless of when cash is exchanged.

The Statement of Revenuwes and Expenses present information showing bow the College’s net
position chenged during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as
soon as the underlying event given rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows, Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will
only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., the acerual for compensated absences).
Activities are reported as either operating or nonoperating. A Public College's dependency on state
aid will result in operating deficits because the financial reporting model classifies state
appropriations as nonoperating revenues. The utilization of long-lived assets, referred to as Capital
Assets, is reflected in the financial statements as depreciation, which amortizes the cost of an asset
over 113 expected useful life.

The Statement of Cagh Flows is reported on the divect method. The direct method of cash flow
reporting portrays nel cash flow from operations as major classes of operating receipts (e.g., tuition
and fees) and disbursements (e.g., cash paid to employvees for service). GASE Statements Nos. 34
and 35 require this method to be used. In accordance with GASB 39, the Foundation is not required
Loy present the statement of cash flows,

The financial statements can be found on pages 15-19 of this report,

Bristol Community College reports its activity as a business type activity using the economic
resources measurcment focus and accrual basis of accounting. The College is an agency of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetis. Theretore, the results of the College’s operations, its net
position and cash flows, arc alse summarized in the Commonwealth’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report in its government-wide financial statements.



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued

June 30, 2018

The Financial Statements - Continued

Notes to financial siatements. The notes provide additional information that is essential 1o a full
understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. The notes to financial statements
can be found on pages 2062 of this report.

Financial Analysis

Bristol Community College adheres to a prudent utilization of the College’s financial résources
including careful cost controls, conservative utilization of debt and adherence to  sound approach
to muintenance of physical plant. At June 30, 2018, the asscts of Bristol Community College
exceeded liabilities by $51,029,145 a $7,140.867 or 16.27% increase from the excess of
543,888,278 at the close of 2017, The primary reason for this large increase is due to the recording
of revenue for a Life Science Grant of $4,400,000, as well as planned reductions in College
expenses by management as a result of decreased student enrollment. At June 30, 2017, the asscts
of Bristol Community College exceeded linbilitics by $62,218,108, a 4,016,327 or 6.90%
increase from the excess of $58,201,871 at the close of 2016, The primary reason for this increase
wis to the additional construction in progress of $4,109,297 recorded for the John J. Sbrega
building,

The largest portion of Bristol Community College’s net position is its investment in capital nssets
(e.g., land, buildings and equipment). Bristol Community College uses these capital assets to
provide services 1o students, faculty, and administration; consequently, these assets are not
available for future spending. The implementation of GASE 75, post-employment benefits other
than pensions, in fiscal year 2018 has required state agencies to record the liability allocated to the
college by the Otfice of the State Comptroller, Thiz adjustment of $18,329,920 has created a
negative unrestricted net position of 56,755,482,



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE

(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Managemeni’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued

June 30, 2018

Financial Analysis - Continned

Condensed Schedule of Met Position

{Restated)
2018 207
Curent and other assets $ 35,632,126 30,022,146
Non-current assels 1, 2000, 0000 -
Capital assets, net 53,233,547 50,552,402
Deferred outflows of resources 4,190,945 3.907 587
Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 094,256,618 85,382,135
Orther liabilities 0500551 B,659.332
Long-term liabilifies outstanding 28,829,272 20,961,411
Deferred inllows of resources 4,897,650 2.873.114
Total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources  43,227.473 41,493 857
Met Position:
Investment in capital assets, net 53,233,547 50,552,402
Restricted 4,551,080 139,465
Uhnrestricled {6,755,482) (6,803, 589)
Total net position § 51,029,145 43,888,278

Restricied net position 15 subject to external restrictions on how they must be used. Bristol
Community College's restricted net position is for scholarships, student loans, and federal and

state grants.




BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued

June 30, 2018

Financial Analyvsis - Continued

Condensed Sehedule of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position

(Festated)
2018 2017
Operating revemes:
Student twition and fees £ 0893118 ¥ 30843219
Lezg scholarship discounts and allowances {(17.638,451) {13,688, 102)
Student wition and fees, net 12,254,667 12,155,117
Clperating grants and contracts 31,523,960 29,531 093
Oiiher sources T14,145 ESD.227
Total operating revenues 44,492 772 42,536,437
Operating expenses 71,447,841 T4, 235 445
Mt operating loss {26,955,069) (31,690 012
MNon-operating rev anes:
State appropriations 28,139,954 27,928,331
Investment income and unrealized gains and losses THT 6TH 263,123
Gifts and conbributions 3,388,665 1,948 030
Total non-operating revenmws 32,310,295 0539 454
Ciain {Joss) before other revenues,
CHpCNsScs, gaing, or lossos 5,361,226 {H59 528
Capital appropyiations 1,779,641 4 875,855
Increase in net position Ty 140,867 4,016,327
Neit position, beginning of the year 431,588,278 39871951
Met position, end of the year 5 __S1,029.145 5 __43.BRBI27H =

= A prior period adiistment for the GASH 75 implemenintion is the reason fior the change in FY1 7 net
position heginming of vear



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE

(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Management®s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued

Financial Analysis - Continued

Student Tuition & Fees
Capital Appropriations

Investment Income,/Unrealized gain

State Approprigthons

Cther Sauroes
Comracts and gifts
Federal, State & Private Contracts

June 30, 2018

FY17 -FY18
Comparison of Revenues by Source
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued
June 30, 2018

Financial Analysis - Continued

The College continues to examine revenue diversification and cost containment due to financial
pressure from increased cost of compensation and benefits, and the need to continue investing in
technology to support teaching and learning. Student tuition and fees, state appropriations, and
federal financial aid remain the primary sources of funding for the College. Gross student tuition
and fees in Fiscal Year 2018 decreased by approximately 3% from Fiscal Year 2017 tuition and
fees due an approximate 7% decrease in enrollment credits and a slight fee increase of $8 per
credit. The enrollment decrease was a trend shared by most Massachusetts Community Colleges,
State appropriations remained spproximately the same from Fiscal Year 2018 to 2017. The careful
use of revenues generated by tuition and fees, and stale appropriations, ensures that the mission
statement of the College was followed and that students would continue to receive a high quality
of education and services.

student FTE

B Py -
5,331

5 300

5,100

4,800 4
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued

June 30, 2018

Financinl Analysis - Continued

Operating cxpenses decreased significantly during the same time frame. This is the result of
reductions in expenditures in anticipation of decreases in revenue due to enrollment decreases

Unrestricted State Appropriation

R T TR S L s -
$22,000,000
$21,0085,653
$21,057,716
EE"IIMQ-J}EH_'I —-
Decrease of less than 1%
£20,000, D00
$19,000,000
§18,000,000 .
FY17F Fyi&
Operating Expenses
$80,000,000 i S LR
575,000,000 -
$74,235,449 el
870,000,000 )
$65,000,000 -

FyiT Fyi8



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued

June 30, 2018

Loss from Operations

It is the nature of public higher education institutions to incur a loss from operations because the
state appropriation is presented as non-operating income. The Commonwealth’s Board of Higher
Education esiablishes tuition charpes, The Collepe sets fees and other charges. The College, with
the purpose of balancing educational and operating needs with tuition and fee revenue, approves
the budgets to mitigate losses after appropriations.

State Appropriations

Uniess otherwise permitted by the Massachuseits Legislature, the College is required to remit
tuition to the Commonwealth. Therefore, the College collects student tuition on behalf of the
Commonwealth and remits it to the Commonwealths General Fund, There is no direct connection
between the amount of tition revenues collected by the College and the amount of state funds
approprigted in any pgiven vear. The following details the Commonwealth’s unrestricted
appropriations received by the College for the fiscal vears ended June 30, 2018 and 2017,

2HE 087
(Groes Comronweall urestneied appropritions: S2A80,716 3 2105453
Phes Eisge benefis® T, 189,028 6,082,320
L ess furtom petied (420,018) (#41.711)
L OC et tiom - .
Net Commearwealh support §UMIMG 5§ 1TMIATI

*The Commonwealth pays the fringe benefit cost for College employess paid from
Commonwealth appropriations. Therefore, such frinpe benefit support is added to the “State
Appropriations” financial statement line item as presented in the above table. The Callege pays
the Commonwealth for the fiinge benefit cost of employees paid from funding sources other than
the State’s appropriations,

-12-



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued

June 30, 2018

Capital Assets and the Debis of the College

Capital Assets: Bristol Community College's investment in capital assets, net of related liabilities,
as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, amounts to $53,233,547 and 350,552,402 respectively, net of
accumulaied depreciation. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and
improvements, and furnishings and equipment. Capital assets increased during the year ended June
30, 2018 by 3.3% or $2,681,145, This was primarily the result of the addition of several new
computer labs and roof repairs being completed in fiscal year 2018. Capital assets increased during
the year ended June 30, 2017 by B.5% or §3,970,335. This was primarily the result of the increased
addition of the new John J. Sbrega Health and Science Building. All capital asset purchases are
pre-approved by the Board of Trustees and are included in the Collepe’s Operating Budget
submitted to the Board of Higher Education and the Commonweslth’s Fiscal Affairs Division.
Additional information about Bristol Community College's capital assets can be found in note 5
on pages 34-35 of this report.

In fiscal year 201 8, the college opened a Women Center, new Veternns Center, and Health Services
Ceqter. The college also renovated two science laboratories. The college has focused on deferred
maintenance, repairs, and has secured over $15 million in state funding for deferred maintenance
projects.

Economic Factors and Next Year's Tuition and Student Fee Rates

In Fiscal ¥ear 2018, the Commonwealth continued to experience economic growth, The College’s
Unrestricted Slate Appropriation increased $274,255 in Fiscal Year 2018 primarily due to an
increase in the fringe rate. Initial projections for fiscal year 2019 include a 1% increase in support
from the Commonwealth, are flat revenue projections for the Commonwealth, Also, due fo a
decline in average high school class sizes and strong economy, the enrollment for both Bristol
Commumty College and other Massachusetts public colleges are expected to continue to decling.
The College increased fees $5.00 per credit for Fiscal Year 2019. We anticipate a 5% to 7%
enrollment decline in Fiscal Year 2019,

R



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) - Continued
June 30, 2018
Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Bristol Community College’s
finances for all those with an interest in the College's finances. Questions concerning any of the
information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be

addressed to the Office of the Comptroller, Bristol Community College, 777 Elshree Street, Fall
River, Massachusetts 02720,

-14 -



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statement of Net Position

June 34, 2018



Liabkdlities, Defirred Inflows of Hetourees and

Current Linhdbitles:
Aceounds payable sl accrued liakdHives
Acoroed paymll
Compersnied shesnces {Mate &)
Workers' compenaation (Mot B}
Sludemts’ deposits nond urenmed mvenues

Funds held for cihess
Uneamned rentrl incose

Curresst partion af mcmgge pavable (Mote 14)
Total Curvent Linbifities

Mem=-Current Linhilities:
Compensnled sheeres {Male &)
Workers' campinaation (Mot )
Mortgage paxable (Mote 14}

Mel pension Liabdlity (Mote %)
et OPEB liakiltiy {Hote 107

Total Nen={ urrent Linbilities
Total Liab#lities

Deferred Inflows of Resowrees:
Ponaion related, net {Mote 5
OFPEH redated, nel {Mabe 10}
Sarvice conpession revenos applicable to fioture years (Kate 1)

Taotal Delferred Inflows of Resouros

Met Posiibom:
Invislsnent | capital nescls, nel
Reiricted {Maba 12)
Monespendghl=
Expuniable
Unrestricied (Mote 13)

Total Met Poslibon

Tatal LiahBities, Dederred Inflows of Resouroes
wndl Med Pagitien

w15

Prinsry Campanent
Ciovemimeii Uit
LCollege Founditicn
5 15695735 £ 101,071
TASL139 2
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47087 -
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. 1ZEAZE
— DS00.55] — g 24
ERG,245 -
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BA3E 44 -
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statement of Revenues and Expenses

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Orperating Revenues;
Tuilion snd fees
Less: schelarship allowanee

Met sfident tostion snd fees
Federal grants and contmacts
State grants and Sontracts

Private grunis and contructs
Other sources

Total Crperating Revenues

Operating Expenses (Note 16):
Instraction

Academic support

Stmdent services

Schalarships and fellowships
Ciperation ard mantenanes of plan
Inztinational supparnt

Fundraising

Depreciation

Oilfher operaiing expenses

Total Operating Expenses
Net Operating Income (Loss)

Mon-Operating Reveaues {Expenses):
Slate apprapriatons, net (MNote 15)
Contrbutions o College
Gifix and comtrithutions
Met investment income {Mote 3]

Total Net Non-Operating Revenwes (Exprmses)

Met Income (Loss) Before Oiber Revenues

(ither Revennes:
Capital appropriations (Mote 18)

Total Inerease (Decrease) in Net Position

The pocompanig wotes are an brtepral pard of the Srancial stoldments,

Primary Component
Grovernmant Uit
Cnll:in: Foundaivn
§ 29803118 L4 z
1T A3R A4S -
12,754 66T '
23 603,397 -
3, (174,454 -
4, 345 065 -
714,045 LS66R
dal 402 772 1308 G6H
274694729
10,570,705
P30 E, T26 -
4 995 747 133,367
5055, 0 3
LOLS54 097 5
. 25937
2257931 182,117
: 70 569
T1A47T. 541 420,790
(G 0E5 06 ER4RTE
28,139 054 =
338K 665 (3,388,665)
- 3121 B58
THTATG T 196
__ 32316295 2344
5361, 226 (1459, 733)
—LTogd] S
d_1140267 1 (1450733}



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Apency of the Commonwedlth of Massachusetis)

Statement of Changes in Net Posifion

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018
Colbege

el vt i Rustricied Restricrod Dnrestricted

in capital asiety  Nomexpesdablo  Expendable  Net Pesition Tatsl
Bxlamce ol June 30, 2007, w5 provieusdy reporied ¥ S55L480 ¥ - § 13%A&S ¥ 11,536,331 6l 218190
Prior pericd adjustuent - See Note 2 . . . BYmem (1830090
Ialamcs af Jane 3l0, 2007, &5 restated 5,552,492 = 139,405 (i HIKE,SEY) 43,455 27
Chasge in nel posilicn for 2015 ZAK 1145 - 4410815 ARM7  __TJ40.857
Balamee af June 30, 2008 EoSrrasl 8 - B 4SRLER)  § (GIRR4EN)  ESLOCSI45

Fueandation

Wet Imvestment Restricled HResiricted Unrestricted

incapitnl saseds  Momexpimdable  Expendabsly el Pesition Totsl
Balance af Jone 30, 2007 7 QL& F 5874048 § T MAN £ L 1I5TER0 E17020,714
Chusgee: im nedl pniisem [or 201K SR TiA GOATE _ LR35y (L ATR) {1 489708
Eelance af Juse 3, 2018 L3N EG44EE 0§ SERLEE 0O E LETLME 0 ELSGS09E]

Mo gecomipandag afes are an mfegral pary o the feancin! shrtermmirn

o |7



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(am Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities:
Tuition and swdent fees
Cmnts and contracts
Payments 1o supplisrs
Payinents fo emplovess
Payments o students
Inconme from othar sources

Net Cash Applied to Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
State appropriations
Ttitioa remnifted o staie
Gifts and gramis received for other than capital purposcs
Funds held for others
Net Cash Frovided by Non-Capital Financing Activities
Cash Flovws from Capital and Helated Financing Activities:
Capital appropriations
Purchases of capital assets
Net Cash Applied to Capital Financing Activitics
Cazsh Flows from Investing Activities:
Purchase of investments
Proceeds from zales and maturitics of mvesiments
Interest on investments
Net Cash Applied to Investing Actlivities
Met Increase in Cash awd Equivalents
Cash and Equivalents, Beminning of Year

Cash and Equivalends, End of Year

=18 -

College

¥ 11,571,070
31,544 418
{10,984 365)
{44,191 420)
(4.998,747)
635 256

223 807

21,270 044

{820,91§)
3,388,665
18,773

24257464

1,548,152
{4,707 58T

(30150 435)
(Q08,437)

665,643
25728

[217.061)
4,457,161
12,005,755

16,462,916



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
{(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Statement of Cazh Flows - Continued

For the Year Ended June 30, 2018

Reconciliation of Net Operapting Loss to Net Cazgh
Applicd to Operating Activifics;
Met operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile net operating koss to net cash applied to operating activitics:
Depreciation
Fringe bencfita provided by the State
Bad debis
Dreferred inflows of nesources - seTvice concession revente
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Other eurrent assels
Accounts payable, sccroed liabilitics and accrued payroll
Acersed compensaied absences and workers' compensation
Students’ deposits and uncarned revenues
Mel pengion activity
Net OFEB activity

Met Cush Applicd to Operating Activities
Swmrmary of Cash and Equivalents, End of Year:
Cash and equival=nis
Cash held by State Treasurer

Total

Non-Cash Transactions:
Fringe benefits provided by the State

Capital improvements provided by capiial appropriations

The accompanying notes ave an infegrel part of the finarciol statements,

« [G=

$ (26,955.069)

2,257,931

7.289.028
307,283
(10,000)

(T27.565)
(27,8000
1,003,547
(200,057)
74425
(78,838)
— T3A35%

2 (16,423,807

£ 12618978
3,843,038
£ 16462916

3§ 72809078
3 231489



Note 1 -

BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Motes to the Financial Statements

June 30, 2018

Summary of i Policies

Organization

Bristol Community College (the “College™) is a state-supported comprehensive two-
year college that offers a quality education leading to associate degrees in the arts and
sciences, a8 well as one-year certificate programs. With campuses located in Fall
River, Massachusetts and New Bedford, Massachusetts, along with other satellite
campuses, the College provides instruction and training in a variety of liberal arts,
allied heaith, engineering technologies, and business fields of study. The College’s
mission is to provide educational, occupational, and cultural opportunities for an
academically, economically and culturally diverse population. The College also
offers, through the Center for Business and Induostry, noncredit courses, as well as
community service programs. The Collepe is accredited by the New England
Association of Schools and Colleges.

Busis of Presenteaiion

The sccompanying financial statemnenis have been prepared using the economic
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as
preseribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB™). Revenues
are recorded when eamned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred,
regantless of the timing of related cash flows. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revienue, as soon as all eligibility requirements have been met.

The College’s policy is to define operating activities in the statements of revenues,
and expenses as those that penerally resull from exchange transactions such as the
payment received for services and payment made for the purchase of goods and
services, Certain other transactions are reported as non-operating asctivities. These
non-operaling activities include the College’s operating and capital appropriations
from the Commonwealth of Massachuscits (the “Commonwealth™), net investment
income, gifts, and interest expense.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Summary of Significani Accounting Policies - Continued

Baxiz of Presentation - confinued

Bristol Community College Foundation (the “Foundation™) is a legally separate
entity. The Foundation acts primarily as a fund-raising organization to supplement the
resources that are available to the College in support of its programs. The Board of
the Foundation is self-perpetuating and primarily consists of graduates and friends of
the College. Although the College does not control the timing or the amount of
receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources received or held by the
Foundation are restricted to the activities of the College by the donors. Because these
resources held by the Foundation can only be used by or are for the benefit of the
College, the Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is
discretely presented in the College's financial statements,

The Foundation is a not-for-profit corporation established in August 1980, The
Foundation was established to promote and support the furtherance of the educational
and cultural mission of Bristol Community College. The Foundation is located at the
College’s Fall River campus,

During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Foundation distributed $3.388 665, to the
College for both restricted and unrestricted purposes.

In reliance on the guidance issued by the Massachusetts Board of Higher Education,
the College and its discretely presented component unit have classified the prior
matching contributions from the Commonwealth of Massachusetts to the Endowment
Incentive Program in accordance with either the donor’s original intent or the
previously issued guidance, Accordingly, these amounts may be classified as
restricted nonexpendable, restricted expendable, or unrestricted.

The complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained from Bristol
Community College Foundation, 777 Elsbres Street, Fall River, MA 02720,
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

MNotes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

Nei Pogition
Resources are classified for accounting purposes into the following four net position
categories:

Investment in capital assets, met: Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation
and outstanding principel balsnces of debt athibutable to the acquisition,
construction, repair, or improvement of those assets.

Restricled - nonexpendable: Nel position subject o externally imposed conditions
that the College must maintain in perpetity.

Restricted - expendable: Net position whose use is subject to externally imposed
conditions that can be fulfilled by the actions of the College or by the passage of time.

Unrestricted: All other catepories of net position. Unrestricted net position may be
designated by actions of the College’s Board of Trustees,

The College has adopted a policy of generally utilizing restricted - expendable Tunds,
when available, prior to unrestricted funds.

Lrugt Frnds

In accordance with the requirements of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, the
Collepe’s operations are accounted for in several trust funds. All of these trust funds
have been consolidated and are included in these financial statements.

Cash and Eguivalenis

The College considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with an original
maturity date of three months or less, and cash and deposits held by state treasurer on
behalf of the College to be cash equivalents.

The Foundation considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity date of three
menths or less when purchased to be cash and equivalents, Money market accounts
held with investment portfolios are cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents are
reported as current or non-current assets depending on the current restrictions and
desipnations of funds.
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MNote | -

BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

eant Accountin = Continued

fnvestmenis
Investments in marketable securities arc stated at fair value. The College has no
donor-restricted endowments.

Capital Asseis

Real estate assets, including improvements, are generally stated at cost. Furnishings,
equipment, and art collection items are stated at cost at date of acquisition or, in the
case of gifis, at fair value at date of donation. In accordance with the state’s
capitalization policy, only those items with a unit cost of more than 350,000 are
capitalized. Interest costs on debt related (o capital assets are capitalized during the
construction period. College capital asscts, with the exception of land, art sculpture
and construction in progress, are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives, which range from 3 to 40 years.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset
or materially extend assets lives are not capitalized,

Pengians

For purposes ol measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Massachusetts State Employees’
Retirement System plan (“SERS") and the additions to/deductions from SERS
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by
SERS. For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee
contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

iy . .



Mote 1 -

BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
{an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

NMNotes to the Financial Statements - Confinued

June 30, 2018
Summary of Sipnifi i licies - Continued
Pos /  Other Than Pensions (OPER")

For purposes of measuring the College’s net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the State Retirees' Benefit Trust
(“SEBT") and additions to/deductions from SRBT's fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by SRBT. For this purpose, SRBT
recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit
lerms.  Investments are reported at fair value, except for money market investments
and participating interest-eaming investment contracts that have a maturity at the me
of purchase of one year or less, which are reported at cost,

Cher Fringe Benefiis

The College participates in the Commonwealth’s Fringe Benefil programs, including
health insurance, unemployment, pension, workers' compensation and certain
post-retirement benefits, Health insurance, unemployment and pension costs are
billed through a fringe benefit rate charged to the College

Compensated Absences

Employees cam the right to be compensated during absences for vacation and sick
leave, Acerued vacation is the amount eamed by all eligible employees through
June 30, 201%. The accrued sick leave balance represents 20% of amounts earmed by
those employees with 10 or more years of state service al June 30, 2018, Upon
retirement, these employees are entitled to receive payment for this acerued balance.

Aflowance for Doubtfil Accounts

Accounts receivable are periodically evaluated for collectability based on past history
with students. Provisions for losses on loans receivable of the College are determined
on the basis of loss experience, known and inherent risks in the loan porttolio, the
estimated value of underlying collateral and corrent economie conditions. Based ona
periodic review of its receivables, the Foundation has determined that gll receivables
are materially collectible and that therefore an allowance for uncollectible amounts at
Jume 30, 2018 is unnecessary.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
{(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

ificant Accounting Policies - Continued

Workers " Compensation

The Commonwealth provides workers’ compensation coverage to its employers on a
self-insured basis. The Commonwealth requires the College to record its portion of
the workers' compensation in its records. Workers' compensation costs are
actuarially determined based on the College’s actunl experience.

Students " Deposiis and Unearned Revenue
Deposits and advance payments received for tuition and fees related to certain

summer programs and tuition received for the following academic year are deferred
and recorded as revenues when earned.

Student Tuition amnd fees

Student tuition and fees are presented net of scholarships and fellowships applied to
students’ accounts. Certain other scholarship amounts are paid directly to, or refunded
to, students and are generally reflected as expenses.

Tax Status
The College is an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts and i therefore
generally exempt from income taxes under Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code,

Live ol Extimales

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make
estimales and assumptions about future evenis. These estimates and assumptions
affect the reported amounts of assets and lisbilities and disclosure of contingent assets
and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, as well as reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Management cvaluates the
estimates and assumptions on an ongoing basis using historical experience and other
factors that manapgement believes to be reasonable under the circumstances,
Adjustments to estimates amnd assumptions are made as facts and circumstances
require. As future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results may differ from the estimates used in preparing the accompanying financial
statements, Significant estimates and assumptions are required as part of determining
the value of accounts receivable, net pension and OPEB liabilities, and estimating
depreciation, amortization and the recoverability of long-lived assets,
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MNote 1 -

BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Summ I Signifi Policies - Continued

New Governmental Accounting Pronguncements

GASE Statement 83 — Certain Asset Retirement Obligations (“AROs™) is effective
for perinds beginning after June 15, 2018. An ARO is a legally enforceable liability
asgociated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. This Statement establishes
criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a lisbility and a
comesponding deferred outflow of resources for AROs amd requires that recognition
occur when the liability is both incurred and reasonably estimable. Management has
not completed its review of the requirements of this standard and its applicability.

GASB Statement 34 — Fiduciary Activities is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2018, The objective of this Statement is to establish criteria for
identifying fiduciary activities. Activity meeting the established criteria would then
be presented in a statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes in
fiduciary net position. Pension and other employee benefit trust funds, investment
trust funds, private-purpose trust funds and custedial funds would be reported, as
applicable, according to this Statement. Information of component units of a primary
government would be combined and shown in the aggregate with the fiduciary funds
of the primary government. Under this Statement, a liability could be recognized to
the beneficiaries in a fiduciary fumd if the povernment has been compelled to disburse
fiduciary resources, Management has not completed its review of the requirements of
this standard and its applicability.

GASEB Statement 87 — Leases 15 effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2019, Implementation of this standard will require lessees 1o recognize on their
statement of net position the rights and obligations resulting from lesses categorized
as operating leazes as assets, liabilities, or deferred inflows / outflows of resources, It
provides for an election on leases with terms of less than twelve months to be
excluded from this Standard, Management has not completed its review of the
requiremnents of this standard and itz applicability.
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Note 2 -

BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - Continued

New Groveramental Accounting Pronouncements - conilinued
GASE Statement 88 — Cerfain Disclosures Related 1o Debi, Including Direct

Barrawings and Placements is effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
Implementation of this standard will require additional disclosures in the notes to
financial statements, including unused lines of credit; assets pledged as collateral for
the debt; and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant events of
default with finance-related consequences, significant termination events with
finance-related consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses,
Management has not completed its review of the requirements of this standard and its
applicability,

GASB Statement 89 — Adccounting for Interest Costs Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2019. The objectives of this Statement are (1) to enhance the relevance and
comparability of information about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a
reporting penod and (2) to simplify accounting for interest cost incurred before the
end of a construction period. Management has not completed its review of the
requirements of this standard and its applicability.

Implementation of Newly Effective Accounting Standard and Restatement of
Previously lssued Financial Statements

The College implemented GASB Statement Number 75 ("GASB 737), Accounting and
Financial Reperting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions as of July 1,
2017,

Subsequent to the original issuance of these financial stastements, management was
advised of an error in the caleulation of OPEB pertaining to projected pay mcreases
for employees in the allocation of the actuarial present value of projected benefit
payments to past and future services as of June 30, 2015 and July 1, 2017.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018
Note 2 - Implementation of Newly Effective Acconnting Standard and Restatement of
Previo Issued Fi i tements - Continued

The table below presents the effects of implementing GASB 75 and the comrection 1o
the previously 1ssued financial statementa,

As Previouslhy Implementation Ax Previously
Reporied of Reparted Correction of As Restated
o June 30, 2017 OASE T e 1, 3007 the Errar al July 1, 2017
Statesmet of Met Position:
Dederred outflove related to OPER 5 - 462,113 462,113 B 462,111
Met OPEB liahility 5 . 21 645,515 21649915 (2857.882) § 18,792,032
Unrestricted net pogition £ 11,536,332 (21,1 878023 (9661 471) 2R57.882 % (6,803,585
As Previously
Fleparied Cormrectiom of As Restated

oilune 30,2018 theBmor  atluoe 30,2008

Statement of Met Position

Deefesred osflows related o OFER £ 1388, 1%] (139,595 § LR 505

Mt OFER liabdlity £ 20,761,783 {2404732) § 18,357,051

Deferred inflows reloted 1o OPER 3 2163 445 (608422) § 2,154,821

Unrestricted net positicn ¥ (9629,241) 2ET759 % (6, T35.452)
Stafement of Fevenues ond Experses;

Operating expenses $ TLA463718 (158770 § 71447841
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Motes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Mirte 3 - Cash and Investments
COwergll Depogits and Investments Deseriptions

Deposits and investments consst of the following at June 30, 2018:

Cash in banks I 12613973

Investmenis;
Certificates of deposit 3,520,292
Bond mtual fonds 5,749,232
Stock mutual funds 6,920,702
Muoney market funds 127,122
Total investments 16,326,348

Total cash in banks and mvesiments  § 28 945,126

Custodial Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the College’s
deposits might not be recovered. Deposits are made in domestic banks that are
federally insured with supplemental insurance for those accounts exceeding the
tederally insured limits, The College’s bank balances, which excludes the College’s
sweep account, at June 30, 2018 were approximately 54,750,000, and were not exposed
to custodial credit risk ag uninsured and uncollateralized.

Total cash deposited with one financial institution, including sweep and checking
accounts, aggregates approximately $8,750,000 or 69% at June 30, 2018, of twotal cash
and equivalents. These deposits are secured by an irrevocable stand-by letter of eredit
issued by the Federal Home Loan Bank of Pittsburgh up to an aggrepate amount of
£14.000,000 providing a scope of coverage substantially the same as that provided by
federal deposit insurance and thus not exposed to custodial credit risk.

.



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
{an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

MNote 3 - Cash and Investments - Continued
There was no concentration of credit risk at June 30, 2018, Certificates of deposits are

made in domestic banks that are federally insured with supplemental insurance for
those accounts exceeding the federally insured limits,

Invesiment Policy

In accordance with Chapter 15A of the Massachusetts General Laws, the Board of
Trustees has adopted an investment policy that applies to locally held funds that are not
appropriated by the state legislature or derived from federal allocations. The principle
objectives of the investment policy are: (1) preservation of capital and safety of
principal, {2) minimizing price volatility, (3) liquidity, {(4) return on investment, and
(5) diversification. Permissible deposits and investments are as follows:

Cash: Domestic banks, federal savings and loan institutions, and credit unions
that are federally insured and Massachusetts banks with supplemental insurance
for those accounts exceeding the federally insured limits to a maximum of
$1,000,000. Accounts are allowed to po slightly above insured rates for acerued
interest.

Tnvesoments: Obligations issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the
LL.S. Govermment, its agencies or instmimentalities, corporate obligations that
are rated A or better by Standard &nd Poor's Comporation, or A or better by
Moody's Investors Services; commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard and
Poor's Corporation or P-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Record, or
puaranteed through a letter of credit arrangement with a major financial
ingtitution, repurchage agreements, mutual funds and equity securities.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

MNotes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Mote 3 - Cash and Investments - Continued

Deposite, fnvestments and Maturities
The College's invesiments and materities inferring risk at June 30, 2018 consist of
Investment malurities {in vears)
Investment type Fair value Lisg than | 1105 i to 10) More: than 10
Dieht securities: -
Certificates of deposit 3520292 % 3520202 % - 3 - ¥
Boasd riutual fands 5,740,132 70,841 950,505 4,716,886
9200524 5 3600033 § 950505 5 47IRERE %
Other investmens:
Cish in hank 12618978
Stock mutml fimds 6,929 702
Money market fimds 127.122
Total § 25,945,326

The credit quality ratings of the College’s debt investments are unrated for the vear
ended June 30, 2018, The bond mutual funds are unrated as they represent funds placed
with a private investment company.

Fair Value Hierarchy

The fair value hierarchy categorizes inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value into three levels. Level 1 inputs are quoted market prices for identical assets or
liabilitics in active markets that a povernment can access at the measurement date,
Level 2 inputs arc inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for an asset or liability, directly or indirectly, Level 3 inputs are
unchservable inputs, The highest priority is assigned to Level 1 inputs and the lowest to
Level 3 inputs. If the far value is measured using inputs from more than one level of
the hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority input
level that 1z significant to the entire measurement. Valuation techniques used should
maximize the use of the obszervable inputs and mimimize the use of unobservable inputs.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018
Cash and I - inned
Fair Value Hicrarchy - continued

The asset’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on
the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement, The
following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets at fair value
on a recurring basis,

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at
fair value. With the adoption of GASE Statement 72, there have been no changes in
the methodologies used to measure fair value.

Registered imvestment compantes: Valued at the daily closing price as reported by the
fund. Mutual funds held by the Board of Trustees are open-end mutual funds that are
registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. These funds are required
to publish their daily net asset value (“NAV™) and to transact at that price, The mutual
fands held by the Board of Trustees are deemed to be actively traded.

Certificates of Deposit: Valued at the initial investment cost plus accrued interest.

The preceding methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not
be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fuir values. Furthermore,
although the College believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent
with other market participants, the use of different methodologies or assumptions to
determine if the fair value of certain financial instruments could result in a different
fair value measurement at the reporting date.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2018

Cash and Invesiments - Continued

Fair Value Hierarchy - continued
The tollowing tables set forth the fair value of the College's investments measured
on a recurring basis at June 20, 2018;

NAV
pér share Levedll Lowl) Leved 3 Tl
Repistered fwestment companies £ - § 12806056 8 - 5 - § 12,806,056
Certificales of deposit - 1520 . . 1,520,290

Total marketable securities at fir value  § ;. L1638 § = 3 - L 6326348
Net Investment Income

The Kllowing schedule summarizes the investment relum in the statement of
revenues and expenses for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Interest and dividend income 5 285,797

Realized gains 152,872
Unrealized gains 199 883
Investment fees (50,876)
287076
(ther Matters

The College does not have foreign currency investments, securities lending
trangactions or derivative investments,
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
{an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018
h and Investments - Continued
Foundati vestment Policy

The investment objectives for the Foundation’s endowment and quasi-endowment
assels are o provide income to support current operations and to achieve growth of
principal and income over time to preserve or increase purchasing power. Based upon
historical evidence, equity investments have produced substantially greater refurns net
of inflation. As a long-term guideline, equity investments will constitute
approximately 65% of endowment assets, up to 25% of which may be invested in
international stocks. Fixed-income investments may include short-term money
market securities, which have histotically produced the lowest return net of inflation.
Such investments, however, shall be kept at the minimum levels that the Finance
Committee considers necessary to meet foreseeable short-term liquidity requirements.

The largest percentage of fixed-income investments shall be invested in portfolios of
high-quality corporate bonds and U.5. Treasury securities. These investments may be
made through a number of separately managed portfolios offered by professional
managers,

The Foundation is the recipient of a 20-year endowment challenge federal grant. The
grantor required the Foundation to maintain separate investment accounts for all
undistributed funds attributable to this grant for that 20-year period. In addition, the
Board of Directors has chosen (o establish segregated accounts for three of its largest
endowed funds, These accounts are managed and maintained separately and do not
participate in the camings allocation of the Foundation’s master investment accounts.

All other funds are invested together in the Foundation's master investment accounts,
Total investment return for the year is allocated annually to each fund based upon its
weighted average value as a percentage of total fund balance.

The Commonwsalth of Massachusetts has enacted the Uniform Prudent Management
of Institutional Funds Act. The Foundation has classified as permanently restricted
net assets (a) the onginal value of gifis donated to the permanent endowment (b) the
original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment and {¢) accumulations
to the permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable
donor gift instrument at the time the accumulation is added to the fund. The
remaining portion of the donor restricted endowment fund that is not classified in
permanently restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets undil
those amounts are appropriated for expenditure by the Foundation.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
{an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Cash and Investments - Continued

Foundation Investmeni Policy - continued

The Foundation has a policy of appropriating for distribution to meet current financial
needs without expending more than 5% of the 3-year average market value of all
endowments, Certain other endowed funds may be subject to other restrictions
including those directed by the donor. When economic downturns result in
temporarily restricted portions of endowment funds to fall below zero, then the only
expenditure allowed by policy is net interest and dividends earned for the prior year
The Foundation's endowment net assets are those funds that either by donor
restriction or Board designation are intended to be invested long-term in order to cam
income and to fund programs and awards over a long period or in perpetuity.

Foundation Cusiodial Risk
Money market accounts held with investment porifolios and reported as cash and
equivalents are not protected by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

fnvestments of the Foundation
The Foundation's investments consist of the following at June 30, 2018

Beneficial interest in trusts $ 77,727
Equity securities and finds 9,156,240
Corporate bonds 1,921,853
Foreign equities 111,799
Federal obligations BE8, 067

Total investments § 12.B49.726
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2018

Cazh and 1 = tinued

Invesiments of the Foundation - contintied

The following schedules summarize the investment return and its classification in the

statement of activities for the year ended June 30, 2018;

Tempararily Permanently

Unirestricted Bestricted Baestrf clbed Testal
Iiterest and dividends 5 46,964 3 223766 g 8558 5 279288
Perpetanl trust distributions 32,280 - . 32,280
Investment fees (12.581) (61,.1146) (2,362% {T0,039)
Met losses on perpelual trusts . t (4,904) (4,904)
Realived and wrealized gaing 85,060 405,461 1 - 401,571
Total investomesnt
return § 152643 S 568261 % 1202 § 72219

Total investments reported are comprised of the following at June 30, 201%:;

Investments, current $ 453,545
Investments designated long-term 404,923
Investiments restricted for long-term purposes 11,981,258

Total invistments % 12.E49 725
Cash Held by State Treasurer

Accounts payable and accrued salaries to be funded from state-appropriated funds
totaled $1,143,938 at June 30, 2018, The College has recorded a comparable dollar
amount of cash held by the State Treasurer for the benefit of the College, which was
subsequently used to pay for such liabilities. Cash held by State Treasurer also
included 2.7 million of Collepe finuds sent W the State Treasurer fo be used in

accordance with the Massachusetts Life Sciences Grant.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Mote 5- A able

Accounts receivable include the following at June 30, 2018:

Student accounts receivable $ 2,92585]
Grants receivable 1,171,182
Other receivables 422 962
4,520,995
Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (583 986)
§ 3,937,009
Mote 6- Contri ivable

Contributions receivable of the Foundation are all considered collectable and are as
follows at June 30, 2018:

Amounts due in:
Less than one year $ 326363
One to five years 05,500
421,863
Less: discounls (o net present value 2311
§ 419,552

Pledges receivable with due dates extending beyond one vear are discounted using
United States Treasury bill rates for similar term investments at the date each pledge
is received, The applicable rate at June 30, 2018 was 1.56%.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2018

Note 7-  Capital Assets
Capital assets of the College consist of the following at June 30, 2018;

Estimeied
livey Hrginmap Endinp
{in years) balaw s Aidivions Beimsants  Roclasdlcaims alarse
Mor-depratible;
Land ¥ O35k § . 5 . § - B FEL
At scuplure 58,200 - - - E.100
Comsinuziics in progress HE7,15% 15359308 - [ EEL354] 1,363,141
Teital ran-theprociabla 021308 155536 . [BEL354) 1 AT 166
Depreciahie:
Land improvements i ERIELERA L RFR AL - - 3137010
Bisilding, including impovemsals 40 8327544 1227084 - EE1 3% BRI
Fursizhings and equipmeni 310 1604179 . {T5.000% ' 2H191TH
Lestehold improvements 5 471,658 . - 471654
Total deprecisbls 85525450 1375504 {75,000 EE1 3% 21713734
Lesse accpmulsied depec:i atica;
Lend inpenvesients (1,303415) L5 D50) ; : [1,551,655)
B lding, imeluding improvemeiis LR AL {15, 5K . . {37,597 250
Fersishings ind equipment (2,040,600 {151252) 73,000 - [Z1508%)
Lesedio bl improvenents [471,655) - - {471.658)
Tl s cnarmad sedd
deprecislion (39,904 5246) [2257.931) 73,000 - (4177 A7)
Cepiiad mswls, net $50552400  FRAMLI4S 8 T | - §51231547
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

MNote 7 - Capital Assets - Continued

Capital assets of the Foundation consist of the following at June 30, 2018:

Erinmatid
Hiv=s Bupinnsnp Ending
{in years} halance Additions Riuremests Reclassificalsons Ll e
MNon-depreciahle:
Lawd O £ - i i - £ B0, 700
Cofd ifusln in progniss 98 445 AL S0 HE353
At sl pines 18,000 s - 13000
Tolal pon-depreciabie 1,057,145 407, 50R 1 AGTO5%
Depreciohle:
Land improvements H 14513 . 14813
Building, inzlding improvements 20-441 4,308 032 280,213 - 4,555,264
Tedal dupecciable PR LR L 250,212 = 4570077
Less: accumalmed depreciotion:
Lond improvements 5. 926) ({740) [t 5]
BuiWimg, including improvemeniz (0,510351) {181,377 (1,601, T38)
Todal necammulaied
depreciation CLLETEIITY (18,117 (1, 098.3%)
Crpltal asseis, et 3 3,860,713 S L T b4 5 43R, 756
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued
June 30, 2018

Long-Term Liabiliti

Long-term labilities at June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

{Resiated)
Beginmng Ending Current
balunce Additions Reductions balance portion

Compensated abrences £ 3,731,668 5 - 5 (27M87Te) § 3451792 § 2,585.544
Workers" compensation 226,092 - (11,021) 215,011 47087
Net pension lizbility 10,561,888 . (1,123,839) 9,438,049
OPEB hability 18,7492 033 - (434,952} 18,357,051
Total long-term liabilities $ 33,311,681 § - ¥ (1,B49778) § 31,461,903 § 2032631

Noted - Pension

Defined Benefit Plan Deseription

Certain employees of the College participate in a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined benefil pension plan — the Massachusetts State Employees” Retitement System
— administered by the Massachusetis State Board of Retirement (the “Board™), which
i3 a public emplovee retirement aystem (“PERS™). Under a cost-sharing plan, pénsion
ohligations for employees of all employers are pocled and plan assets are available to
pay the benefits through the plan, regardless of the status of the employers’ payment of
its pension obligations to the plan. The plan provides retirement and disability benefits
and death benetits to plan members and beneficiares.

The Massachusetts State Employess” Retirement System does not issue stand-alone
financial statements. Additional information regarding the Plan is contained in the
Commonwealth’s financial statements, which is available on-line from the Office of
State Comptroller’s website.



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Note 9 - Pension - Continued

s AL

SERS provides retirement, disability, survivor and death benefits to members and their
beneficiares, Massachusetts General Laws (“MGL™) establishes uniform benefit and
contribution requirements for all contributory PERS. These requirements provide for
superannuation retirement allowance benefits up to a maximum of 0% of 2 member's
highest three-year average annual rate of regular compensation. For employees hired
after April 1, 2012, retirement allowances are calculated based on the last five years or
any five consecutive years, whichever is greater in terms of compensation, Benefit
payments are based upon a member's age, length of creditable service, group
creditable service, and proup classification. The authority for amending these
provisions rests with the Massachusetts State Legislature (the “Legislature™).

Members become vested after ften yvears of creditable service. A superannuation
retiremnent allowance may be received upon the completion of twenty years of service
or upon reaching the age of 35 with ten years of service. Normal retirement for most
employees occurs at age 63; for certain hazardous duty and public safety positions,
normal retirement is at age 55, Most employees who joined the system after April 1,
2012 are not eligible for retirement until they have reached age 60,

Cortrilmitions

The SERS' funding policies have been established by Chapter 32 of the MGL. The
Legislature has the authortty to amend these policies. The anmuity portion of the SERS
retirement allowance is funded by employees, who contnbute a percentage of their
regular compensation, Costs of administering the plan are funded out of plan assets.

Member contributions for SERS vary depending on the most recent date of

membership:
Hire Date Percent of Compensation
Prior to 1975 5% of regular compensation
1975 - 1983 7% of regular compensation

1984 to 6/30/1996 8% of regular compensation

T/1/1996 to present 9% of regular compensation except for State
Police which 1s 12% of regular compensation

1979 to present An additional 2% of regular compensation in
excess of $30,000

ol =
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Pension - Continwed

Conrributions - continwed

The Commonwealth does not require the College to contribute funding from its local
trust funds for employee paid by state appropriations. Penson funding for employees
paid from state appropriations are made through a benecfit charge assessed by the
Commonwealth, Such pension contributions amounted to approximately $2,463,000,
52,652,000 and $2.470,000 for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

For employees covered by SERS but not paid from state a iations, the Collepe is
required to contribute at an acmarially determined rate, 'I%e rate was 11,78%, 9.95%
and 9.45% of annual covered payroll for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, 2017
and 2016, respectively. The College contributed $700,937, $575.354 and $550,021 for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018, 2017 and 2016, respectively, equal to 100% of
the required contributions for each year. Annual covered payroll was approximately
65%, 62% and 62% of total related payroll for fiscal vears end 2018, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.

f__{{,ji-t?-‘: f.;::;{:-:!’;:‘m:-' F-E'HSI-'.'J?I EJ:.L?-EF?S-E’ mrd D'eférrf-:i Chiaflows of Resowrces and

Al June 3{!, 2018, l]'u: Eullt:g': rq‘mrtﬁ.l a Im[::l]ll}r of $9.438,049 for its ]:mpuﬂmnatr.:
share of the net pension liability related to ils participation in SERS. The net pension
liability as of June 30, 2018, the reporting date, was measured as of June 30, 2017, the
measurement date, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2017 rolled forward
to June 30, 2017.

The College's proportion of the net pension liability was based on its share of the
Commonwealth of Massachusetts” collective pension amounts allocated on the basis
of actual fringe benefit charges assessed to the College Tor the fiscal year 2018. The
Commoenwealth's proportionate share was based on actual employer contributions to
the SERS for fiscal years 2018 relative to total contributions of all participating
employers for the fiscal year. At June 30, 2018, the College’s proportion was 0.074%.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the College recognized pension expense of

$622,052. The College reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources at June 30, 2018:

e



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Motes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018
Note 9 - Pension - Continned
Pension Liabilitiey, Pension Expenze and Deferred Ouiflows of Resouwrces and

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions - continued

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date

ifferences between expected and
acal experience

Changes in proportions from Commonwealth
Changes in plan actuarial assumptions
Changes in proportions due to internal allocations

Total
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pension

Differences between expected and
actual experience

Differences between projected and
actual earnings on pension plan investments

Changes in proportions from Commonwealth
Changes in proportions due to internal allocations

Total

-3

$ 700,937
364,913
32,326
082,173
662 000
2 2742240

b 256,785

112,454

3,364

— 2340274

& 2712827



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continned

June 30, 2018

MNote 8 - Pension - Confinued

Pension Liabilities, Pension FExpense and Deferred Ouiffows of Resources and

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related fo Pensions - contined
The College’s contributions of $§700,937 made during the Gscal year ending 2018,

subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension hability in the succeeding year. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows
of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
as increases {decreases) in pension expense as follows:

Yeurs Ending
June 30,
2me F (100,633)
2020 172,883
2021 (158,293)
2022 (578,630)
2023 (6, 742)

2 _(671.413)

Actuarial Asyumptions
The total pension lLiability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Mensurement date June 30, 2017
Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 4.00% to 9.00%
Investment rate of return T.500%
Investment rate credited to anmuity savings fumd 3.50%

_44 .



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

MNote 8 - Pension - Continued

Aetuerial Assumptions - continued
For measurement dates June 30, 2017, mortality rates were based on:

s  Pre-retirement - reflects RP-2014 Blue Collar Employees table projected
generationally with Scale MP-2016 set forward 1 year for females

s Post-retirement - reflecis RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant table
projected generationally with Scale MP-2016 set forward 1 year for femiales

s [igability - reflects RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant table projected generatiomally
with Scale BB and & base year of 2015 (gender distinet)

The 2018 pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2017 and rolled forward to June 30, 2017,

Investment assetz of SERS are with the Pension Reserves Investment Trost (“PRIT™)
Fund. The long-term expected rate of retum on pension plan investments was
determined using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expectsd
future rates of return are developed for each major asset class, These ronpes are
combined to produce the long-term expecied rate of retum by weighting the expected
future rates of return by the target asset allocation percentape. Best estimates of
peometric rates of return for each major asset class included in the PRIT Fund’s tarpet
asgzet allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following table:

- 45 .



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 3, 2018
Note % - Pension - Continued
rial i - e
Long-term

Target expected real
Assel Class Allocation | |rate of return
Global Equity 40.00% 5.00%
Portfolio Completion Strategies 13.00% 31.60%
Core Fixed Income 12.00% 1.10%
Private Equity 11.00% 6.60%
Value Added Fixed Income T0L0%5 3.80%%
Real Estate 10.00% 1.60M%
Timber/Natural Resources 4. (0% 3.20%
Hedge Funds 0.00% 3.60%

10000 %

hlael i)

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5% at June 30,
2018, The projection of cash flows used to determing the discount rate assumed that
plan member contrnbutions will be made at the current contribution rates and the
Commonwealth’s contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between
actuarially determined contributions rates and the member rates. Bazsed on those
assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future bencfit payments of current plan members, Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applicd to all
periods of projected benefit payvments to determine the total pension liability,
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Mote 10 -

BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Fension - Continued

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discownt Rate

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the net pension Hability calculated
using the discount rate as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-percentage-
point higher than the current rate.

Junc 30, 2018
Current
1.00% Decrease Discount Rate 1.00% Increase
(6.50%) (7.5006) (B.50%)
$ 12854230 ¥ 9438049 § 6,686234

OFER

Plan Desoription

As an agency of the Commonwealth, centain employees of the College participate in
the Commonwealth’s single employer defined benefit-OPEB plan — the State
Retirees’ Benefit Trust ("SRBT"). Benefits are managed by the Group Insurance
Commission ("GIC"} and mvestments are managed by the Pension Reserves
Investment Management ("PRIM™) Board. The GIC has representation on the Board
of Trustees of the State Retirees' Benefits Trust (*Trustees").

The SRBT i3 set up solely to pay for OPEB benefits and the cost to administer those
benefits. 1t can only be revoked when all such health care and other non-pension
benedits, corrent and future, have been paid or defeased. The GIC administers benefit
payments, while the Trustees are responsible for investment decisions,

Management of the SRBT is vested with the bosrd of trustees, which consists of
sgven members including the Secretary of Admimistration and Finance {or their
designes), the Executive Darector of the GIC (or thear designee), the Excoutive
Director of PERAC (or their designee), the State Treasurer (or their designes), the
Comptroller (or a designee), one person appointed by the Govemnor and one person
appointed by the Stale Treasurer. These members elecl one person o serve as chair
of the board.

- I
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

OPEB - Continued

FPlan Description - comtinued
The SEBT does not isspe a stand-alone audited financial statements but is reflected
as a fiduciary fund in the Commonwealth's audited financial statements.

Benefiits Provided

Under Chapter 32A of the Massachusetts General Laws, the Commonwealth is
required to provide certain health care and life insurance benefits for retired
employees of the Commonwealth, housing authorities, redevelopment authorities
and certain other povernmental agencies. Substantially all of the Commonwealth's
employees may become eligible for these benefits if they reach retirement age while
working for the Commonwealth. Eligible retirees are reguired to contribule a
specified percentage of the health care / benefil costs, which are comparable to
contributions required from employees. Dental and vision coverage may be
purchased by thess groups with no subsidy from the Commonwealth.

Contributions

Employer and employee contribution rates are set by MGL., The Commonwealth
recognizes its share of the costs on an actusrial basis. As of June 30, 2017 and as of
the valuation date (January 1, 2017), participants contributed 0% to 20% of premium
costs, depending on the date of hire and whether the participant's status is active,
retired, or survivor, As part of the fiscal vear 2010 General Appropriation Act, all
active employees pay an additional 5% of premium costs.

Effective heginning in fiscal year 2014, by statute the Commonwealth is required to
allocate, to the SEBT, a portion of revenue received under the Master Settlement
Apgreement with tobacco companies, increasing from 10% in fiscal year 2014 to
100% by fiscal vear 2023. In fiscal yvear 2017, 10% of tobacco settlement proceeds
or approximately 325 million was allocated to the SEBT. The percentage of
proceeds to be transferred to the SRBT in fiscal year 2017 was set al 10%,
ovemding existing statate.

- 48 -



Mote 10 -

BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

MNotes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

OPEE - Continued

The Mazsachusetts General Laws poveming emplover contributions to SEBT
determine whether entities are billed for OPEB costs. Consequently, SRBT
developed an effective contribution methodology which allocates totsl actual
contributions amongst the employers in 2 consistent manner (based on an employer's
share of total covered payroll). The College is required to contribute based on
Massachuselts General Laws; the rate was £.92% of annual covered payroll for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, The College contributed $530,693 for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2018 eqoal to 100% of the reguired contribution for the year.

OPER Liabilities, OPER Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferved Inflows of Resouwrces Related to OPER

At June 30, 2018, the College reported a Hlability of 518,357,051 for its
proportionate share of the net OPEB liability related to its participation in SRBT.
The net OPEB liability was measured as of Juns 30, 2017, and the total OPEB
lLiability used to calculate the net OPEB lLability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of JTanuary 1, 2017, The Caollege’s proportion of the net OPEB liability
was based on its share of the Commonwealth's collective OPEB amounts allocated
on the basis of an effective contribution methodology which allocates total actual
contributions amongst the emplovers in a consistent manner based on the College's
share of total covered payroll for the fiscal year 2017, The College's proportionate
share was based on the actual employer contributions to the SRBT for fiscal year
2017 relative to total contributions of all participating employers for the fiscal vear.
At June 30, 2018, the College's proportion was 0, 1050%.

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the College recognized OPEB expense of
$1,292 836. The College reporied deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources at June 30, 2018:
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE

(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Note 10 - OPEB - Continoed

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date g 530,693
Changes in propertion from Commaonwealth 33419
Changes in proportion due to internal allocation BT0 484
Total deferred outflows related to OPEB 5 1444 596

Net differences between projected and actual earnings

on OPEB plan investments § 33492
D flerences between expected and actual experience 42,206
Changes in OPEB plan actuarial assumptions —nallI2, 120
Total deferred inflows related to OPEB sl 154823

The College's contnbution of $530,693 reported as deferred outfllows of resources
related to OPEB resulting from College contributions subsequent to  the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPERB liability in the

following year.

= 5[ =



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

MNote 10 -  OPEB - Continued

OFER Ligbilities, OPEBR FExpense, and Deferred Owtflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflons of Resources Related io OPER - contimued

Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OFER will be recognized in OPER expense as follows:

¥ears Ending
Jume: 30,
2019 ¥ (259,613)
2020 (259,613)
2021 (259.613)
2022 (259,613)

2023 (198 468}
201,236,920
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(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

OFER - Continued

The total OPEB liability was determined using the following actuarial assumptions,
applied to all perinds included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Measurement date June 30, 2017
Inflation 3.00%
Salary increases 4.5% per year

7.5%, net of OPEB plan
investment expense, including
Investment rate of return inflaticn

#.5%, decreasing by 0.5%
each year to an ultimate rate of
5.0% in 2024 for Medical;
3.0% for BEGWT;

Health care cost trend rates 5.0% for administrative costs

The mortality rate was in gecordance with RP 2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table
projected with scale MP-2016 from the central vear, with females set forward onc
year.

The participation rates are actuarially assumed as below:

« |0%% of all retirees who currently have health care coverage will continue
with the same covernge, éxcept that retiress under age 65 with POS/PPO
coverage switch to Indemnity at age 65 and thoss over 65 with POS/FPO
coverage switch to HMO.

s All cumrent retirees, other than those indicated on the census data as not being
eligible by Medicare, have Medicare coverage upon attainment of age 65, as
do their spouses. All future retirees ave assumed to have Medicare coverage
upon attainment of age 65.

e
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

OPEB - Continued

Actuarial Assumption
s 80% of current and future confingent ehigible participants will elect health

care benefits at age 65, or carrent age if later,
s Actives, upon refirement, take coverage, and are assumed to have the
following coverape:

Retirement Age

LUinder 65 Ape G5+

Indemmity  40.0% B5.0%
POS/PPQ  50.0% 0.0%
HMO 10.0%% 15.0%

The actuarial assumptions wsed in the Januvary 1, 2017 valuation were based on the
results of an actoardal experience study for the periods ranging July 1, 2015 through
December 31, 2016, depending upon the criteria being evaluated. As a result of this
actuarial experience study, the mortality assumption was adjusted in the January 1,
2017 actuarial valuation to more closely reflect actual experience as a result of the
recent experience study completed by the Public Employee Retirement
Administration Commission ("PERAC").

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future rates
of refurn are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage.

The SEBT is required to invest in the PRIT Fund. Consequently, information about
SRBT's target asset allocation and long-term expected real rate of retum as of June
30, 2018, are the same as discussed in the Pension footnote number 9,
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

OPEB - Continued

Discount Rare

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 3.63%. This rate was
based on a blend of the Bond Buyer Index rate (3,58%) as of the measurement date
and the expected rate of return,. The OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was not
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for current
plan members. The projected “"depletion date” when projected benefits are not
covered by projected assets is 2023, Therefore, the long-tenm expected rate of retum
on OPEB plan investments of 7.50% per annum was not applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB Hiability.

Sexsitivity of the Cellese s proportionate shave of the net OPER liahility to changes
in the discount rate

The following presents the College's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability,
as well as what the College’s proporionate share of the net OPEB liability would be
if 1t were calculated vsing a discount rate that is |-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current discount rate:

1.00%% Decrease Discount Rate  1.00%% Ihcrease
2.63% 3.62% 4.63%

Net OPEB Liability § 21,791,288 $ 18,357,051  § 15,626,565
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

OPEB - Continned

AL s il Logr
in the healthcare coxt trend raofes
The following presents the College’s proportionate share of the net OPER liability,
as well as what the College’s proportionate shave of the net OPER liability would be
if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentape-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current healtheare cost trend rates:

Current Healthcare
1.00% Decreass Cost Trend Rate [.00% Increase
(B) (A) (C)
4 15,188,125 £ 18,357,051 322527 166

(A) - The current healthcare cost trend rates are as follows;

9.0% for Medicare, 5.0% for EGDP and 5.0% for administration cosls.
(B) - The healthcare cost trend rates after a 1% decrease are as follows:
#.0% for Medicare, 4.0% for EGWP and 4.0% for administration costs.
(C) - The healthcare cost trend rates afier a 19 increase are as follows:
10.0% for Medicare, 6.0% for EGWP and 6.0% for administration costs.

Dieferred Intlows of Resources

The College has entered into service concession smangements for dining and
bookstore operations with Unidine Food Management, Inc. (*Unidine™) and Follett
Higher Education Group, Inc. (“Follett™), respectively, In exchange for these
agreements, Unidine and Follett have provided the College with funds to augment
the cost of improvements to the College’™s dining and bookstore facilities. These
monies gre amortized into revenue ratably over the life of the agreements through
June 2017 and June 2021. In the event of termination, as provided for by either party
in the agpreements, repayment of the unamortized portion would be required. The
agreements also require additional payments from Unidine and Follett to defray
costs incurred by the College, as well as revenue shanng, which amounted o
approxmately $365,000 dunng the year ended June 34, 2018.

e hE



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018
Note 11 - Deferred Inflows of Resources - Continued

Recopnition of these deferred inflows in annual revenue 15 as follows:

Years Ending
June 30,
2019 3 10,000
2020 10,000
2021 10,000}

§__30.000

Note 12 - Restricted Net Position

The College is the recipient of funds that are subject to various external constraints
upon their use, either as to purpose or time. During the vear ended June 30, 2018, the
College received a 34.4 million Massachusetts Life Sciences Grant. All other
restricted-expendable funds are to be used for academic programs.

The Foundation’s restricted - nonexpendable and expendable net assels consist of
investments to be utilized for various scholarships and program support.

Mote 13 - Unrestricted Net Position

The Foundation's unrestricted net assets are composed of the following at June 30,
2018:;

Unrestricted net assets designated by the Foundation's
Board of Directors for the following purposes;

Margaret Jackson Art Center and
Visual Arts Fund § 354254
President’s Merit Scholarship 50,669
Undesignated 1. 466379
Total urestricted net assels $ LA71.302
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

MNotes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Note 14 - Commitments and Contingencies

Related Party Transaciions
On March 30, 2007, the College entered into a revocable license agreement with the

Foundation for use of a building and related premises located in Attleboro,
Massachusetts to be used for additional classroom and instructional space and such
other related purpose consistent with that of a community eallege. The license, which
expired on March 30, 2016, is automatically renewed for one year unless written
notice is given by either party not less than thirty days prior to the then scheduled
expiration date. Total costs under thas license agreement was approximately $284,000
for the year ended June 30, 2018, For the year ended June 30, 2019, the College is
committed to payments tofaling approximately $213,000 related to this license
agreement. The Foundation has a mortgage payvable on this property of $2,834,181 as
of Tune 30, 2018,

The College cumently occupies its New Bedford campus under a tenant-at-will
agreement with the Foundation that requires monthly payments of approximately
548,000, Negotiations for a ten-year lease with the Foundation are cumrently on-going
under the auspices of the Department of Capital Asset Management and Maintenance
("DCAMM™). Total rent expense for this lease agreement was approximately
$£576,000 for the year ended June 30, 2018,

[ itimati
In May 2017, the College filed a notice of appeal of a jury trial verdict which, in

October 2016, awarded the plaintiff, of a discrimination suit, $2.5 million. The
College filed an appeal of this ruling in August 2018, In the event that the verdict is
upheld, or another judgement or settlement is reached, the College intends to submit
the full amount of any judgermnent or settlement to the Commonwealth Office of the
Comptroller for payment pursuant to 815 CMR 5.00.

There are varous lawsuits pending or threatened against the College that arose from
the ordinary course of operations, other than the one previously described. In the
opinion of management, no liigation 15 now pending or threatensd, which would
materially affect the College’s financial position,
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(am Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Mote 14 - Commitments and Contingencies - Continued

Federal, State, and Private Grants and Conlracts

The College receives significant financial assistance from federal and state agencies
in the form of grants, Expenditures of funds under these programs reguire compliance
with the grant agreements and are subject to audit. Any disallowed expenditures
resulting from soch audits become a lability of the College, In the opinion of
management such adjustments, if any, are not expected to materially affect the
financial condition of the College.

The College participates in the Massachusetts College Savings Prepaid Tuition
Program (the “Program™). This Program allows individuals to pay in advance for
future tuition at the cost of tuition at the time of election to participate, increased by
changes in the Consumer Price Index plus 2%. The College is obligated to accept as
payment of tuition the amount determined by this Program without repard to the
standard tuition rate in effect al the time of the individual"s enrollment at the College.
The effect of this Program cannot be determined as it is contingent on future taition
increases and the Program participants who attend the College.

Risk Management

The College participates in the various programs administered by the Commonwealth
for property, general liability, automobile liability and workers® compensation. The
Commonwealth 13 self~insured for employees' workers' compensation, casualty,
theft, tort claims, and other losses. Such losses, including estimates of amounts
incurred but not reported, are oblipations of the Commonwealth. For workers®
compensation, the Commonwealth assumes the full risk of claims filed under a
program managed by the Human Resources Division. For personal injury or property
damages, Massachusetts General Laws limit the risk assumed by the Commonwealth
tio 510,000 per occnrrence, in most circomstances,

- 58 -



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Mote 15 - Lease Commilments
The College has lease agreements for additional academic space in Taunton and Fall
River, expiring through June 2026. Total occupancy costs under these lease
agreements was approximately £1,041,000 for the vear ended June 30, 201 8.

Future annual lease payments subsequent to June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Years Ending
June 30,
2019 $ 1,061,558
2020 1,082,818
2021 1,104,716
2022 1,117,654
2023 747,632
Thereafter 2553084

& TO08 562
Mote 16 - Operating Expenses

The College's operating expenses, on a natural classification basis, are composed of
the following for the year ended June 30, 2018:

Compensation and benefits 5 52,358,209
Supplies and services 11,832,054
Depreciation 2,257,931
Scholarships and fellowships 4,998 747

S 71447841
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Motes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Mote 17 - Other Fringe Benefits

The College participates in the Commonwealth's Fringe Benefit programs,
including active employee and post-employment health insurance, unemployment,
pension and workers’ compensation benefits, Health insurance for active employees
and retirees is paid through a fringe benefit rale charged o the College by the
Commonwealth.

Group Insurance Commission

The Commonwealth’s Group Insurance Commission ("GIC") was established by
the Legislature in 1955 to provide and administer health insurance and other
benefits to the Commonwealth’s employess and retirees, and their dependents and
survivors, The GIC also covers housing and redevelopment authorities” personnel,
certain authorities and other offline agencies, retired municipal teachers from certain
cities and towns and a small number of municipalities a3 an agent multiple-
employer program, accounted for as an agency fund activity of the Commonwealth,
not the College.

The GIC is a quasi-independent state agency govemed by & seventeéen-member body
(the “Commission™ appointed by the Governor. The GIC is located
administratively within the Executive Office of Administration and Finance, and it
is responsible for providing health insurance and other besefils to the
Commonwealth’'s employees and retirees and their survivors and dependents,
During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, the GIC provided health insurance for
its members through indemmity, PPO, and HMO plans. The GIC also administers
carve-ouls for pharmacy, mental health, and substance abuse benefits for certain
health plans. In addition to health insurance, the GIC sponsors life insurance, long-
term disability insurance (for active employees only), dental and vision coverage
(for employees not covered by collective bargaining), retiree discount viston and
dental plans, and a pretax health care spending accouni and dependent care
assistance program (for active employees only).
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE

(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018

Mote 17 - Other Fringe Benefits - Continued

Other Retivement Plans

The employees of the College can elect to participate in two defined contribution
plans offcred and admimistered by the Massachuseits Department of Higher
Education — an IRC 403{b) Tax-Deferred Annuity Plan and an IRC 457 Deferred
Compensation SMART Plan. Emplovees can contribute by payroll deduction a
partion of before-tax salary into these plans up to certein limits, The College has no
obligation to coniribute to these plans and no obligation for any future pay-oul

Note |8 - State Appropriations

Drirect unresiricted appropriations: § 21057716
Add: fringe benefits for benefited employvecs on the
statle pavroll 7,280,923
Less: day school witon remitted to the state and
included i mition and fee revenne (429 918)
Total vnresircied appropriations 21917, 726
Restricied appropriations 223 228
Capital appropriations 1,779,641
Total appropriations 3 29919595
MNote 19 - Massachusetis Management Accounting and Reporting System

Section 15C of Chapter 154 of the Massachusetts General Laws requires
Commonwealth colleges and universities to report activity of campus based funds to
the Comptroller of the Commoenwealth on the Commonwealth’s Statewide
Accounting System, Massachusetts Management Accounting and Reporting Systeém
(“MMARS") on the statutory basis of saccounting. The statutory basis of accounting is
a modified accrual basis of accounting and differs from the information included in
these financial statements. Management believes the amounts reported on MMARS
meet the guidelines of the Comptroller’s Guide for Higher Education Audited
Financial Statements,
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)

MNotes to the Financial Statements - Continued

June 30, 2018
Mote 19 - Massachusetts Management Accounting and Reporting Svstem - Continued
A reconciliation between the College and MMARS as of June 30, 2018 is as follows
(unandited):
Revenue per MMARS § 21,684,899
Reveme per College 23 456,338
Difference

$ (1,771,439)

The difference for the year ended June 30, 2018 relates to a combination of factors
including funding by the state for tuition waivers totaling approximately $622,000

and funding by the College for payroll, facility improvements and other items of
approximately $1,150,000.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commuonwealth of Massachusetis)

Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability {Unaudited)

Massachuserts State Employvees' Retivement System

¥ear ended June 340, 1R Jume 30, 20UT Jume 30, 2016 June M, 2005
Measumement date Jume 30, 2007 Jine 30, 201G Jume 50, 2015 June 3, 2014
Yaluation date Jamuary 1, 2017 Jenuary 1,2004 Fanuury |, 235 Janaary 1, 2014
Prapartion of the net pension lisbiligy (LO74% 047 7% 0.104% D08 T
Iroportionate share of fhe collective net

pension abilicy 5 943040 % 10561824 4 11,807,041 £ 4491611
Callege’s covered payrol] g 57ELA51 £ 5HIB335 4 6,250,000 £ &E4&0LS

Collepe’s propariionate shere of the nel
peazion liability as s percentige of fis

cinvired payrall 163, 32% 181.53% LHE. 1% U 529
Flan fiduciary ned position ns a percentage of fhe

tolal pension liahility 67.21% 63,48 G757 T6.52%
Motes:

The GASHE petmoussoment requiring the presgadation of the information on this sehedule became effective for
vorrs beghnning afier June 15, 2004 and is intended to provide data for the most recent ten years,

Ser avcompanying notes i the reguived sipplemeniiery: igfaritatisn
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
{an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Schedule of Contributions - Pension {(Unandited)

Massachusetts State Employees' Retirement System

for the Years Ended June 30,
2018 2017 2016 2015

Statutorily required contribution 5 700,937 3 575354 § 550021 5 049384
Cotitributions in relation to the statatorily reguired

contribution 704,937 575354 550,021 5449 384
Contribution excess 5 - 3 = 5 5
Covered payroll % 5,050,219 3 5782451 § 5818335 £ 6,250,000
Contribution as a pereentage of covered payroll 11.78% 008% .45% 10,395
Motes:

Emplovers participating in the Massachusatts State Emplovess’ Retirement System are required by bA

General Laws, Section 32, to contribuie an sctually determined contribution rale each year.

The GASE pronouncement requiring the presentation of the information on this schedule became effective for

venrs beginning after lune 15, 2014 and {2 itended to provide data for the most recent ton years.

See qocompanying noles io the required supplementary infarmation.



BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE

(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Pension (Unaudited)

June 30, 2018

Mote | - Change in Plan Actuarial and Assumptions

Fiscal year June 30, 2018

Change of Benefils!

Chapter 79 of the Acts of 2014 established an early retirement (“ERI™) program for
certain members of the SERS plan. As a result, the total pension liability of SERS
increased by approximately $10 million as of June 30, 2017.

The mortality rates were changed as follows:
» Pre-retirement — was changed from RP-2000 Employees table projected
generationally with Scale BB and a base year of 2009 (gender distinct) to RP-
2014 Blue Collar Emplovees Table projected generationally with Scale MP-
2016 and set forward | vear for females

» Post-retirement — was changed from RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant table
projected generationally with Scale BB and a base vear of 2009 (gender
distinet) to RP-2014 Blue Collar Healthy Annuitant Table projected
generationally with Scale MP-2016 and set forward 1 year for females

»  Disability — did not change

These mortality rate changes resulted in an inerease of approximately $304 million in
the total pension liability of SERS as of June 30, 2017.

Fiscal vear Jumne 30, 2017

Change of Benefits:

Chapter 176 of the Acts of 2011 created a one-time slection for eligible members of
the Optional Retirement Plan (“ORP™) to transfer into the SERS and purchase service
for the period while members of the ORP. As a result, the total pension liability of
SERS increased by approximately 3400 million as of June 30, 2016,
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information Pension (Unaudited) -
Continued

June 30, 2018

Maote 1 - 'Eln.nge in Plan Actuarial and Assumptions - Continued

Fiseal vear June 30, 2016

Change of Benefits:

Chapter 19 of the Acts of 2015 established an ERI program for certain members of the
SERS plan. As a result, the total pension liability of SERS increased by approximately
£230 million as of June 30, 2015,

Assumptions:

The discount rate to calculate the pension liability decreased from 7.75% to 7.5%. This
change resulted in an increase of approximately $933 million in the fotal pension
liability of SERS as of June 30, 2015.

The mortality rates were changed as follows:
s Pre-retirement — was changed from RP-2000 Employees table projected 20
years with Scale AA (gender distinct) to RP-2000 Employees table projected
generationally with Scale BB amd a base year of 2009 {gender distinct)

o  Post-retirement — was changed from RP-2000 Healthy Annuitant table
projected 15 vears with Scale AA (gender distinet) to RP-2000 Healthy
Annuitant table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of
2009 {gender distinet)

o  Dizability — was changed from RP-2000 table projected 5 years with Scale AA
(gender distinct) et forward three vears for males to RP-2000 Healthy
Annuitant table projected generationally with Scale BB and a base year of

2015 (gender distinet)

These mortality changes resulted in an increase of approximately $1.397 billion in the
total pension liability of SERS as of June 30, 2015,

Fiseal vear June 30, 2015

An updated experience study encompassed the period Januwary 1, 2006 to December
31, 2011, The study reviewed sglary incieases and rates of reticement, disability,
trnover and mortality. This study adjusted the mortality assumption which resulted in
an ingrease of approximately £102 million in the total pension liability as of June 30,
2014,
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Schedule of Proportionate Share of Net OPEB Liability (Unaudited)

State Retirees’ Benefit Trust

Wear ended

DMeasuretment date

Valualion date

Proportion of the collective net OPEB liability

Proportionate share of the collective net
OPEB liahility

College's covered payrell

Collere’s proportonate share of the net
OPEB liability 8z a percentape of ils
covered payrodl

Plan fiduciary net position as 4 percentage of the
total OPEE lLiability

Motes:

Jume 30, 2018
June 30, 2017
January 1, 2017

0.105%

5 18,257,051

H]

5,702,451

JITA46%

3,39%

The GASB pronouncement requiring the presentation of the informuation on this schedule beeame effective for

vears beginning after June 15, 2017 and iz intended o provide data for the most recent ten years,

See gocompanying notes o the reguived supplementary information.
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BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE

{am agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetis)
Schedule of Contributions - OPEB (Unaudited)
State Retirees' Benefit Trust

For the Year Ended Junc 30, 2018

Statutorily required contribution § 530,693

Contributions in relation o the stauionly required

contribution {530,693)
Contnbubion (excessdefici b -
College’s coverad payroll § 5950229
Contrbution 48 a percentapge of covered puvrall B.02%
Miestes:

Employers participating in the State Retirees' Benefit Trust are required by MA General Laws, Section 32, to
coniribute an sctuprially defermined contribution rate each vear,

The GASE pronouncement requiring the presentation of the information on this schedule became effective for vears
beginning after June 15, 2017 and iz intended to provide data for the most recent ten years,

Fed gocompanying rotes lo tve requived supplenrentory information,

bt -



Note ] -

BRISTOL COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - OPEB
June 30, 2018

Change in Plan Assumptions
Fizcal vear June 30, 2018

Assumptions;

The discount rate was increased to 3.63% based upon a blend of the Bond Buyer
Index rate as of the measurement date as required by GASB Statement 74, The June
30, 2010 discount rate was calculated fo be 2.80%. This increase m the discount rate
resulted in a decrease in the net OPEB liahility of approximately $3.08 hillion as of
June 30, 2017,



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS



'Connor
dDrewpc.

'« Certilied Pubilic Accountands

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Trustees of
Bristol Community College
Fall River, Massachusetts

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial avdits contained in Gevernment
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financisl
statements of Bristol Community College (an Agency of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts)
(the "College™) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic financial statements, and we have
issued our report thereon with a dual date of October 12, 2018 and January 30, 2019,

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College's
internal control over financial reporting (“internal control™) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College’s
internal control, Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's
internal control,

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal cowrse of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
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Onr consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or, significant deficiencies, Given these limitations, during our audit we did
nol identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, matenial weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grant apreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material cffect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly,
we do nol express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of

noncompliance or other matters that are required fo be reported under Gevernment Auwditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's intermnal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

T'Commor omd D F.c.

Certificd Public Accountants
Braintree, Massachusetts

October 12, 2018 (except for Management™s Discussion and Analysis, Note 2, Note 8, Note 10,
Mote 16, and Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability, as to which the date is
January 30, 2019)






